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SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
REPORT OF THE DIREGTORS’

Yaur directors present thelr repart, logether with the financlal statements of the Group, belng the Campany and its controlled anties for the financial
yearended 31 July 2009, '

Principal Actlvities and Significant Changes in Nature of Actlvities

The principal actlvities of the consolidatad group during the fnanclal yoar ware:
* manufacturing and distribution of hair care praducts exclusively to salons and other selected outlets; and
= distribution of cosmaelic products:

Operating Results and Review of Operations for the year
Operating Results

The consolidated prafit/ (-} loss of the consclidated group after providing for Income tax and eliminating minorlly equlty interests amounted to §-
6,212,318 (2008 : Loss $320,450). This reprasented an 1938% Increass on the result reported for the year ended 31 July 2008. The significant
increase In kosses was largely from impairment of goodwill and Inventories.

Chairman's Report
Soda Brands Limited {Soda) has incurred an aperating loss of $6.2 million for the 12 months ended 31 July 2008. The result ntludes impairment of
geodwill of $3.8 milfon and impaimment of fnventory of $0.7 miiion.

As announced at the half year reporting date, the Directors undertook a number of Inltlatives to counter-act the problems the company faced in light of
the dificult economic climate experianced during the 2008 financial year,

The inilialives included:

> Senlor managemant team restructure;

> An ‘across the board’ cost-culting program; .

> Entry into a call option fo acquire 100% of Incolabs (owner of the year old nnoxa branded skin cars ranga);
> Board of directors rastructure; and

> Addifional furding from the major shareholders (Souls Private Equity Limited and Maximize Equity Pty Limited).

The table below summarises the operating results botween the first and secand halves of tha 2009 financlal year.
Flaasa refer 1o tha Chairman's Report for a datailed review cf the oparations of tha consolidated group for the finandal year.

2008 Financial Year

Half 1 Half 2 Full Yoar
$'000 $000 $000

Revenue . 1,549 818 2,364
Gross Margin 408 39 798
G5 26% £8% 34%
Overhead Expenses 1,488 866 2,342
EBITDA 1,078 465 1,543
Depreciation & Amortlsation 46 32 78
Interest Expense - 69 63
Net Profit Bafore Cne-Offs {1,124) {566} {1,690}
One-Off Events
Impairment of Stock 450 263 713
Impairment of Goodwil 3,809 - 3,809
Nat Profit / {Loss) After Tax (5,383) {829) (6,212)

While the abovementloned Iniliatives hava improved the operating results in the second six months of the financial year, the business fs not foracast to
break-even until the second quarter of the 2040 financlal year. The businass continues to exparience a tough sales environment which has led to a
significant decline In ravenues during the 2002 financlal year.

The major shareholdars, Souls Private Equity Limited (SPEL) and Maximize Equity Ply Limited (MEQ) have continued to support the Company via
sacured loans while the business moves towards a break-aven cash flow position. Thesa loans squate to $0.6 milllon as at 31 July 2008,

Past the successful complation of due dikgence enquiries, the Company has exercisad tha call option over the sntira issued share capital of Incolabs
which becomes effective on 31 Otfober 2009. The acquisition will be funded via additional secured loans totaling $2.7 milllon pravided equally by SPEL
and MEQ.

It is the Intention of the Campany to recapitalise via a combination of a tights [ssue and placement. The recapitalisation will be underwritten by SPEL
and MEQ to the level of their securad loans. The delail of the recapitalisation will be sent to al] sharehalders via thelr registerad mailing 2ddress In dus o

The 2009 financlal year results are substantially below expeciations. The Initlatives undertaken by the Company have commenced delivering the
stabllisation of the business. The confinuation and stabilisation of the Company would not have been possible without the additional funding support of
tath SPEL and MEQ as well as the efforts of the new management team and al] staff, Special mention must go to the acting CEQ, Mr. Stsven Beinart.
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The acquisition of Inoolabs will commence dalivering the aconomles of scake required In operating a branded ‘health and beaufy care’ business. The
Incolabs business will commence belng consolidated in the Company's rasulls from 1 November 2009,

Financilal Position

The net assets of the consolidated group have decraased by $5,230,599 from 31 July 2008 to $-458,469 in 2009. This decrease is largely due to the
following factors:

* Impalmment loss on goodwill;

« Impalrment loss on absclete and slow moving stack; and

« Write off of bad & doubfful debts,

The directors believa the greup is In a stable financlal position to run its current opsrations, profitably.

Significant Changes in State of Affalrs
The following significant changes in the state of affairs of tha parent entity oceurred during the financial year:

(1} On 09 September 2008 the company acquired the business owned by Hair F¥ Australia Pty Lid, the company issued 723,405 ardinary shares at
$36,170.25 as part consideration for the purchase; and

paid thy initial price amaunt of $200,000 1o the vendor on the completion date; and
pald the second payment amount of $50,000; and
deferred purchase price amount of $100,000 to ba pald to the vendor after 12 months of camplstion,
Changes In controllad entitles and divisions:
(1} Gompletad the purchass of 100% of issued share capltal of Kistani Pty Ltd, which manufaciures hair cars products by Issuance of 8,501,282
ordinary sharas to Kistanl Holdings Ply Ltd on 09 September 2008; and
Issuance of a further 2,777,778 ordinary shares to Kistani Holdings Fiy Ltd at an Issue price of 18 cants par share; and
Issuance of 2,880,000 erdinary shares to Kistani Heldings Pty Ltd after 33 July 2014, subfect to agreed performance targets; and

Issuance of 11,831,673 options over unlssued ordinary shares to Kistani Holdings Pty Lid at an lssue price of 20 cents per share, exercisable
before 31 January 2010; and

Issuanca af 100,000 options over unissued ordinary shares to Kistani Holdings Pty Lid atan Issue price of 25 cents per share, axercisable
before 01 August 2011; and

Issuance of 500,000 options over unlssued ordinary shares to Maximiza Equity Pty Ltd at an kssua price of 25 cents per share, exercisable
before 01 August 2012; and

fssuance of 500,000 oplions over unissued ardinary shares to Starvos Dimitriadis at an lssue price of 25 cents per share, axarclsable before 01
August 2012; and

Isstrance of 150,000 aptions over unissued ordinary shares to Richard Stanley at ar issue price of 26 cents per share, exarcisabls hefore 01
August 2012; and

Dividands Paid or Recommended
There were no dividends paid or proposed during the year.
After Balance Date Events

Post the successful co'mplet[nn of dus diligence enqulies, the Company has exercised the call oplion over the entira Issued share capital of Incolabs
Haldings Pty Lid on 26 October 2009, which becomes sffactive on 31 October 2009. The acquisition will be funded via additional secured loans totalling
$2.7 milllon provided equally by Souf Private Equity Limited (SPEL) and Maximize Equity Pty Ltd {MEQ).

On 28 October 2008 the directors have resclved fo cancel shata options previously Issued to the ex-directors.

Chris Photakis passed away and ceased to be a director from 14 August 2009 and David John Fairfull was appeinted a directer on 01 September 2009
and reprasents SPEL, the majority shareholder of the group, no other matters or circumstances have arlsen singe the end of the financlal year which
significanily affacted or may significantly affect the aparations of the consolidatad group, the resulis of those aperations, or tha state of affalrs of the
consolidated group in future financial years.

Futura Devalopments, Prospects and Ruginess Strategies

To furthar imprave the consclidated group's profit and maximise shareholder wealth, the following developments are Intandsd to ba Implemented In the
near future:

Environmental Issugs

The consolidated group's operations are not sublect fo significant environmental regulations under the law of the Commonwealth and Stste. The
Company pramotes refilable containers for its products to reduea any adverse Impact on the enviranment,

Information on Directors

FAIRFULL Andrew {Non-exec Chalrman) -
Qualifications — Bachslor of Commarce, MAICD, SA Fin
Experience — Twelve year financia! service industry experience with Souls Private Equity Limited and six

years chartered accounting experionca
Intarest in Shares and Options — 115,000 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares - 0.25% of lssued capital and 250,000 options
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KROK Maxim {Non-executive Directar) — o ’

Intarest In Shares and Opfions ~=  The direcfor Is a nominse director appolnted by Maxmize Equity Ply Lid, an ultimate hokling
company of Kistani Holdings Pty Ltd (Kistanl). Kistani halds 11,369,060 Fuily Paid Ondlnary
Shares - 24.63% of issued capital and 13,081,673 options

BEINART Steven {CEO -Exacutive Direclor) —

Interest in Shares and Options — The direclor Is a nominea director appelnted by Maxmize Equity Pty L, an ultimate holding
company of Kistani Holdings Piy Ltd (Kistani). Kistani holds 11,369,060 Fully Pald Ordinary
Shares - 24.63% of issued capital and 13,081,673 options

PHOTAKIS, Christapher (Non-exac Director)
Interest in Shares and Options

FAIRFULL Davld John (Non-sxec Chalrman)
Qualifications B.Com (UNBW), A.C.I.S, C.P.A., Ffin, MALC.D.
Experience —  Mr. David John Fairfull s marchant banker with over 40 years experience In mergers and
acquisitions and underwrting projects. During the past three years, Mr. Falrfull has =served as
a Director of the following listed companies:
Australian Pharmacautical Industries Limited
Gazal Corporation Limited
New Hope Corporation Limited*
SP Telemedia Limited
Stockland Trust Group
Washington H. Soul Pattinson and Company Limited*
* denotes current directorship

Mr, Fairfull represnts SPEL, the majority shareholder of the group.

Interest in Shares and Options — 130,000 Fully Paid Ordinary Sharas
Bpaclal Responsibilities —  Meambar of Audit Commiltee & Remuneration Committes

Company Secretary

The following person held the posltion of company socratary at the end of the financlal year:
MCGIBBON, Christophar Wiliiam — MCGIBBON, Christapher Wilkam was appaintsd company secratary on 09 February 2009,

Nil

Pl

Meatings of Directors

Euring the financial year, § meetings of directors (including committees of directors) were held,
Aitendancas by each director during the year were as follows:

N , Audit & Remuneration
Directors' Meetings Commities

Number Numbear

aligitle atlended

fn aftsnd
FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-axec Chalmman) 5 5 5 5
KROK Maxim (Non-executiva Director) 5 5 5 5
BEINART Steven (CEQ Execuliva Director) 2 2 2 2
PHOTAKIS, Christopher (Non-exac Director) 2 1 2 1
GHATTAS, Nicotas (Executive Director) 3 3 - -
DIMITRIDIS, Stavros (Non-executive Diractor) 3 3 - -
BRETT, Hilton {Non-gxec Rirector) 3 3 - -
KULMAR, Stephen {Non-exec Director) 3 - - -

Indemnifying Cfficers or Auditor )
Buring or since the end of the financial year, the company has given an indemnity or entered into an agraement to indemnify, or paid or agreed fo pay
insurance premiums as follaws:

The corpany has pald premiums to insurs each of the following directors against flabllitles for costs and expenses incurred by them in defending any
legal praceedings arising out of thelr conduct while acting in the capacity of director of the company, other than conduct invelving a willul breach of duty
in eelation to the company. The amount of the pramium was $20,000 for all of the direclors namad below:

FAIRFULL Andrew {Non-exec Chaiman)
KROK Maxim (Non-sxecutive Diractor)
BEINART Steven (CEO -Executive Dirastor)
PHOTAKIS, Christopher (Non-exec Directar)
GHATTAS, Nicolas (Exscutive Diractor)
DIMITRIDIS, Stavros (Non-executive Director)
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BRETT, Hilton {(Non-exec Director)
KULMAR, Stephan (Non-exec Director)
Optlons
At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Soda Brands Limited under option are as follows
GrantDate  Earliest Date of expiry Exercise price  Number

date under option

axercisahla

11122006 210172009 31/07/2012 25¢ 1,750,000
9/09/2008  1/08/2008 /012018 20¢ 11,831,673
9/09/2008 1/08/2000 14082012 25¢ 1,250,000

Options halders do not hava any rights to participate In any Issues of sharss or ofher interests in the Campany or any olher entily.
Thera have bean no unissued shares of inferests under option of any controlled entify within tha Group during or since reporting date.
For detalls of options issuad to directors and executivas as remunsration, refer to the Remuneration Report.

During tha year ended 31 July 2009, no ordinary shares of Soda Brands Limited were issued on the exerclsa of optlons granted.

Proceedings on Behalf of Company

Mo parson has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the campany or intervena in any proceedings to which the company is a
parly for the purpase of taking responsibility on bahalf of the company for all or any part of those procsedings.

The company was not a party to any such procesdings during the year.

Non-audit Services

The board of directors, In accardance with advice from the audit commitiee, is sallsfad that the provision of nan-audit services during the year is
compalible with the general standard of indapendence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors are satisfied that tha servicas
discloged balow did not compromise the external auditor's independence for the following reasons:

* all non-awdit services are reviewad and approved by the audit commities prior to commencement to ensure they do not adversely affect the Integrity
and objectivity of the auditor; and

» he nature of the services provided do not compromise the general principles relating to auditor independence in accardance with APES 110: Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants sat by the Accounting Professlonal and Ethical Standards Boaxd.

The following fees were paid or payable to Rothsay Chartared Accountants for non-audil services provided during the year ended 31 July 2009;

$
Taxation sarvices 3,600
Dua diligance invastigations 1.620

5,220

Auditor's Independence Declaratlon
The lsad auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 31 July 2008 has bean recsivad and can be found on page 8 of the Annual Repert,

ASIC Class Order 98/100 Rounding of Amounts
The company is an entity to which ASIC Class Ordar 98/100 does not apply.

REMUNERATION REFPORT
Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of Soda Brands Limited has been designed to align key management personne| objeclives with shargholder and business
ohjeclives by providing a fixed remuneration componant and affering specific long-term incentives based on key performance areas affecting the
consalidated group's financial results. The board of Soda Brands Limited believes the remunsration policy to be appropriate and effective in its ability to
altract and refain the best key management personne] to run and manage the consolidated group, as well as create goal congruence batwasn
directors, executives and sharsholders.

The board’s paltoy for determining tha nature and amount of ramunsration for key management personnel of tha consofidatlad group is as follows:
» The remuneration policy is required ta be developed by the remuneration committes and approved by the board,

« Al key managemaent parsonne! receive a base salary (which is based on factors such as length of servica and exparience), superannuation, fringe
benefits, oplons and performanca Incantives.

» Performancs Incentives are generally only payad once predeterminad key perfurmance indicators have been met.

* Incantives pald in the form of cptions or Hghts are intanded 1o align the Interests of the directors and company with those of the sharaholders. In
this regard, key management parsonnal are prohibited from limiting sisk attached to those instruments by use of derivatives or other means.
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* The remuneration committes reviews key management personnal packages annually by reference to the consolidated group's performanca,
executive performance and comparable informatian from industry sactors.

The performance of key management personne! is measured agalnst criteria egreed annually with each executive and is based predominantly on the
forecast growth of the consolldated greup’s profits and shareholders' valus. All bonuses and ncentives must be linked fo predetermined performance
criteria, Tha board may, however, exercise its discretion in relation to approving incentives, bonuses and options, and can recommend changes to the
cammittee’s recommendations. Any changes must be [ustified by reference o measurable performance criteria. The policy Is designed to attract the
highest calibre of executives and raward them for psrformance that restlts in long-tarm growth in sharehalder wealth,

Key management personnel subjact i the arangement are subject to a policy goveming the use of sxtemal hedging arrangements. Such personnel
are prohibited from entering [nto hedge arrangements, ie put options, on unvested shares and oplions which farm part of their remuneration packages.
Terms of employment signed by such personne! contaln details of such restrictions.

Upen retirantent, key managemant persenne! are paid employes benefit entilements accrusd to date of relirament. Any optionz not exercised before
ar on the date of termination lapse.

All remuneration paid to key management personnel s valued at the cost to the company and expensed.

The board policy Is (o remunerate non-executive directors at market rates for time, commitmant and responsibiliies. The ramuneration committes
determines payments to the nan-executive directors and reviews their remuneration annually, hased on market praclice, duties and accountabllty, The
maximum aggregate amount of fees that can be pald fo non-executive directors is aubjact to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Mesting.

Key management personne! are also entitted and encouraged to participate in the employee share and option arrangemants to afign directors’ Interests
with shareholder Interesis,

Options granted under the arrangement do not earry dividend or voting rights. Each option is entitled o be converted Into one ordinary share onca the
Interlm or final financiai report has baan disclosed to the public and are valued using the Black-Scholes methodology.

Kay management parsonnel subject to fhe arrangament are subject to a palicy goveming the use of external hedging arrangements. Such parsonne}
are prohibited from entaring into hedge amangements, Le. put options, on unvested shares and options which form part of their remuneration package.
Terms of employment signed by such parsannel contain detalls of such restictions.

Performance tiased remuneration

The key parformance indicators (KPls) are set annually, with a certain isve! of consultation with key management perscnnel to ensure buy-in. The
meastires are specifically tallored to the areas each individual is involved In ard has a level of control over. The KPls target areas the board believas
hold greater potential for group expansion and profit, covering financial and non-financial as well as shott and long-temn goals. The lavel set for each
KPl s based on budgeted figuras for the group and respecive industry standards.

Perfarmance-in relation to the KFPI's is assessed annually, wkh bonuses belng awarded depending on the number and deemed difficult of the KPIs
achieved. Fallowing the assessment, the KPls are reviswad by the remuneration comriittas in light of the dasired and actual outcomes, and thelr
efficiency is assessed In refatlon to tha group's goals and shareholder weaith, before the KEI's are set for the following year,

in defermining whether or not a KPI has been achieved, Soda Brands Limited basas the assassment on aud'ted figures.

Relationship between remuneration policy and company performance

The remuneration policy hes been tallored to increase goal congruence between shareholders, directors and executives. Two methods have hesn
applied to achiave this aim, the first being a performance-based bonus based on key performance indicators, and the sacond baing the issue of oplions
to the majority of diractors and executives to encouraga tha alignment of personal and shareholder interests. The company beliavas this policy to have
been effective in increasing shareholder wealth over the past four years.

The key performance indicators (KPls) are set annually, with a certin lavel of censultation with key management personns! 10 ensure buy-in. The
measures are specifically tallorad to lhe areas each indlvidual is involved In and has a leve) of control over. The KPls target areas the board bellavas
hold greater patential for group expansion and profit, covering financial and non-financial as weall as short and Isng-term goals. The level sat for each
KPlis based on budgeted figures far the group and respective industry standards.

Performanca in ralation to the KPI's Is assessed annually, with bonusas being awarded depending on the number and desmed difficulty of the KPIs
achieved. Following the assessmant, the KPls are reviewed by the remunsration committee In light of the desirad and actual outcomes, and their
efficlency Is assessed in refation to the group's goals and shareholder wealth, before the KPI's are set for the following year.

In determining whether or not a KPI has been achieved, Soda Brands Limited bases the assassment on auditad figures.

Performmance Conditions linked to Remuneration

The satisfaction of the parformance condilions are based on a review of the audited financla’ statements of the Group, as such figures reduce any risk
of contention refafing to payment elighillty. The Board does not balleva that performance conditions should Indlude a comparison with factors external
to the Group at thls time.

Employment Details of Members of Koy Management Personnel and Other Executives

The following table provides employment details of persons who were, durlng the financial year, members of key raanagement personnel of the
consolidated group, and to the extent different, were amongst the five group executives or company executives recelving the highest remuneration. The
table also illustrates the proportion of remuneration that was performance and non-performance based and the proportion of remuneration recalved in
the form of aption,
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Position Held as at 31 July 2008 and any
change during the yaar

Group Key Management Personnel
FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec Chalrman}
KROK Maxim (Non-execulive Divector)
BEINART Steven {CED -Execufive Director)
PHOTAKIS, Christopher {Non-axec Dlractor)
GHATTAS, Nicolas (Executive Director)
DIMITRIDIS, Stavros (Non-executive Director)
BRETT, Hilton {Non-exac Directar)
KULMAR, Staphen {Non-exec Diractor)
McGIBEON, Christopher Willlam {Ganeral
Managsr - shared servicas)

Na changs during the year
Appointed on 09 Septamber 2008
Appointad on 01 May 2009
Appeinted on 01 May 2009
Reslgned on 09 February 2009
Resignad on 01 May 2009
Reslgned on 01 May 2009
Raslgnad on 01 May 2008
Appointed on 09 February 2009

Propartions of elements of remuneration related o Proportions of elaments of remunaration

performance not refated to performance
Non-salary
cash bagsd Shares/ Dptions/ Fixed
incantivas Units Rights SalaryiFees Total
: % % % % %
Group Key Management Personnel
FAIRFULL Andraw {Non-exec Chalrman) - - - 100 100
KROK Maxim (Non-executive Cirector) - - - 100 100
BEINART Steven (CEO -Execitive Director) - - - 100 100
PHOTAKIS, Christopher (Non-exac Director) - - - 100 100
GHATTAS, Nicalas (Executive Diractor} - - - 100 100
DIMITRIDIS, Stavros (Non-executiva Diractor) - - - 100 100
BRETT, Hilton (Nen-exec Director) - - - 100 100
KULMAR, Stephen (Non-exee Director) - - - 100 100

McGIBRON, Christopher Wilkam (General
Manager - shared services)

The employment terms and conditions of key management personne! and group axecutives are formalised In contracts of employmeant.

Nole A:

Non-executlve directors are subject to simllar contracts.

Changes in Directors and Executives Subsequent ta Year End

Chris Pholakis passed away and ceased to be a director from 14 August 2009 and David John Palrfull was appointed a director on 01 September 2008
and represants SPEL, the majority shareholder of the group.

Remuneration Detaiis for the Year Ended 3% July 2009

Tha following table of payments and benefits details, in respact to the financial year, tha components of ramuneration for each member of the kay
management parsonnel for the consolidated group and, fo the extent differant, the five group execulives and five company executives receiving the

highest remunsration:-

‘Fable of Beneﬁts and Payments for the year ended 31 July 2009

Salary, Fees and Leave

2009 4
Groug Key Management

Personne!

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-sxea

Chalman)

KROK Maxim {Non-exsculive

Ditecior)

BENART Steven (CEO - 5.000

Executiva Director)

PHOTAKIS, Christopher (Non 5,000

exec Direttor)

GHATTAS, Nicolas
{Executive Director}
DIMITRIDIS, Stavras {Nan-
executive Diractor)
BRETT, Hilton {Non-gxec
Director)

24,000

28,657

208,850
15,000

16,350

Shortferm benefits
Cash bonuses  Non-monetary Qther
$ $ $

Post Employment

Beneflis
Superannuatip

n

Other

Long:term benefits

Incentive Flans
§




KULMAR, Stephen (Non-
exet Directar)

McGIBBON, Christopher
Witlam (General Manager -
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16,344

37212

11,611 -

2009

Group Key Managemant
Parsonnel

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec
Chalrman)

KROK Maxirm {Non-execietiva
Diractor)

BEINART Stsven (CEO -
Executive Director)

PHOTAKIS, Christopher (Mon-

exes Director)

GHATTAS, Nicolas
{Execulive Directar)
DIMITRIDIS, Stavros (Non-
execufive Director)

BRETT, Hiton {Non-exes
Birector)

KULMAR, Stephen (Non-
exec Director)

McGIBBON, Christopher
Willlam (General Manager-

Long-term benafits

LsL
$

Equity-seftled shara-based
payments

Shares/Units

Options/Rights
b $

Cash-settled
shared haged

payments
$

Termination
benefits

Total
- 26,160
- 26.667
- 5,000
- 5,000
- 218,31
- 15,000
- 18,350
- 16,344

- 328,822

2008 .

Group Key Management
Personnel

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec
Chalrman)

KROK Maxim (Non-execuliva
Director)

BEINART Steven (CEOQ -~
Exgcutive Director)
PHOTAKIS, Christapher {Non:
exes Director)

GHATTAS, Nicolas
{Executive Direclor)
DIMITRID]S, Stavros (Non-
execitive Piractor)

BRETT, Hilton {Non-exec
Dlrector)

KULMAR, Stephen (Non-
exec Director)

McGIBBON, Christopher
Wilktarn {General Manager -

Salary, Fees and Leave
$

24,385

198,147
1,500
10,900

20,000

Shoert-term benefits

Cash bonuses
$

Non-monetary

Post Employment
Benefits
Superannuatio
n Cther
$ $

15,604 -
135 -
10,500 -

1;300 -

Long4erm benefits

Incentive Plans
3

254,932

2008

Group Key Management
Personnel

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec
Chalinman)

KROK Maxim (Non-executive
Director)

BEINART Steven (CEO -
Executive Direcior)
PHOTAKIS, Christopher {Non-
exes Directar)

Long-term henefits

LSL
$

Equity-settied share-based
paymenis

Sharesi/Units ~ Options/Rights
s §

Cash.gettled
sharad based
payments
$

Termination
benefits
$ $

- 25,950
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GHATTAS, Nicolas - - - - - 213,751
{Executive Director)
DIMITRIDIS, Stavros (Non- - - - . - 1,635
execuiiva Director)
BRETT, Hllton {Non-exec - - - - - 21,800
Director)
KULMAR, Stephen (Non- - - - - - 21,800
exac Director)

- - - - - 264,936

Mr. Maxim Krok and Mr. Steven Belnart are nominee directors appointed by Maximize Equity Pty Ltd and the directors fees for Mr Maxim Krok $26.667
(2008: $nil) and Steven Beinart $5,000 (2008: nil) are pald to Maximize Equity Pty Ltd

Securities Recolved that are not Performance Related
No key managemant personnel are entltled to receive securitles as part of their remuneration package, which are not performance-based,

Cash Bonuses, Performance-Related Bonuses and Share-based Payments
No options and bonuses granted as remuneration during the year to key management personne! and other executives during the year,

esolution of the Board of Directors.

This Report of the Directors', incorporating tha Remuneration Report, Is slgned in accordance wi

e

Director FAIRPULL Andrew (Non-exec Chairman) BEINART Eteven (CEO -Executive Director)

Dated this 30th day of October 2009 30th dayof Qclober 2009



AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
TG THE DIRECTORS OF SODA BRANDS LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 July 2009 there
have been:

(i} ng contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations
Act 2007 in relation to the audit; and

(i) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation 1o the audit.

Name of Firm Rothsay Chartered Accountants »

e,

Name of Partne%Anﬁ’Vrachas

Date 30/10/2009
Address Level 18, 6-10 O'Connell Street

Sydney, NSW 2000




SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2008

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
Note 2609 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
Revenue 2 2,364,386  2,655415 2,328,213 4,080,526
Changes In inventories of finished goods and work in (2,278,688) (1,152,406) (2,253,520) (1,089,251)
pregress
Employee benefits expense (953,795)  (921,619)  (953,795)  (B5D,129)
Sales, marketing and branding expense (302,708)  (267,179)  (300,706)  (253,952)
Digtribution Expensa (204,085)  (178415)  (292,365) (168,321}
Depreciation and amortisation expense (78,365)  (132,338) (78,365) (132,338}
Other expenses (791,443)  (308,232)  (790,729)  (296,845)
Finance costs (68,6849) (15,677) (68,849) (15,677)
[.oss on Impaiment of goodwill 3,808,961 - (3,808,961 -
Loss befors income tax 3 (6,212,318) (320,450} (6,218,878) 1,276,012
income tax expense 4 - - - -
Loss from conlinuing operations (6,212,318)  (320,450) (5,218,876) 1,276,012
Loss for the year (6.212,318)  (320,450) ’6,218.878% 1,276,012
Loss atiributable to members of the parent entity (6.212,318) {320,450} (6,218,878] 1,276,012
Overall Operations
Basic loss per share (cents per shara) 7 (13.88) {0.84)
Diluted loss per share {cenis per share) 7 (10,68} (0.50)
Gontinuing Operations
Basic loss per share (cents per share) 7 {13.88) (0.94)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 7 {10.68) {0.90)

Dividends per share {cents) - -
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 2009

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ & $
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Gash and cash equivalents 8 19,679 120,024 18,022 117,761
Trade and other recelvables 9 286,955 362,364 438,737 1,074,046
Inventaries 10 841,887 1,719,577 621,313 4,672,450
OCther assets i5 62,496 366,818 62,496 24,930
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,010,817 2,568,782 1,141,588 2,889,187
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other financial assets 1 - - 704 3,293,840
Property, plant and equipment 13 58,349 192,720 58,349 23,719
Intangible assets 14 - 3,293,136 - -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 58,349 3,485,857 59,083 3,317,559
TOTAL ASSETS 1,089,166 6,054,639 1,200,621 6,206,746
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payahbles 16 883,072 1,258,508 872,669 1,252,675
Current tax liabililies 18 - - - -
Short-term provisions 19 14,678 24,001 14,878 24,001
TOTAL GURRENT LIABILITIES 897,750 1,282 503 887,347 1,278,676
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Barrowlngs 17 §29,885 - 629,885 -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABRILITIES 629,885 - 629,885 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,527,685 1,282,508 1,517,232 1.276,676
NET ASSETS/ DEFICIT ___(458,468) 4,772,130 __(316,611) 4,830,070
EQUITY
lssued capital 20 7,885,006 6912808 78850068 6,912,808
Reserves - (9,521) - -
Retalned eamings B,343.475) (2,131,185 8.201,617) (1,982,737
Parent interest 458,469) 4,772,130 316,611} 4,930,071
TOTAL EQUITY (458,469) 4,772,130 (316,611} 4,930,071

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES - - /' © =
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
Note 2008 2008 2009 2008
§ $ $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from custormers 2,629,375 2,504,284 2,537,864 3,557,645
Interest received 1,482 33,238 1,482 33,238
Payments ta suppliers and employesas {3,748,811) (2,748,329} (3,487,694) (3,638,229)
Finance costs (68,649) (15,677} (68,649) (16,677)
Net cash (used in) aperating activities 22  (1186,603) (22§,484) (1,016,998) {63,023
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of business - Halr FX (515,825) (271,380) (515,825) {271,380)
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment - (49,9 168,001 33,024
Net cash (used in) investing activities (615,825) (321,357}  (684,828)  (304,404)
GASH FLLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of shares 972,198 - 972,198 -
Proceeds from borrawings 629,885 - 629,885 -
Repayment of bormowings - - - 173,802)
Net cash provided by (used In) financing activities 1,602,083 - 1,602,083 173,802}
Net increase in cash held {100,345)  (547,841) (89,738}  (541,229)
Cash at beginning of financial year 8 120,024 667,865 117,761 658,990
Cash at end of financlal year 8 19,679 120,024 18,022 117,761

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 148 635 AND CONTRQLEED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 JULY 2009

‘This financial report includes the consalidated financial statements and notes of Soda Brands Limited and controlied entities (‘Consolidated Group' or
*Group’), and the separate financial statements and notes of Soda Brands Limited as an individual parent enilty ('Parent Enlity’).

Nofa 1 Statement of Signiflcant Accounting Pelicies

Basls of Praparation
‘The {inancial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards., issued by the
Auslrallan Accounting Standards Board, Australian Accounting Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2001,

Australian Accounting Standards set out acoounting policles ihat the AASB has concluded would result In 2 financial report containing relevant and reliable
information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ansures that the financlal slatements and noles
also comply wilh Intemational Financial Reperling Standards. Material accaunting policies adopted in the praparation of this financial report are presented
below and have been consistently applled unless otherwise statad,

The finanolat repost has been prepared on an accruals basis and [s based on histarical costs, modiffed, where applicable, by the measuremant at falr value
of setected non-current assets, financial assets and financlat labllitles.

Going concern basis

-Buring the year ended 31 July 2009, the Sroup Incumed negative operating cash flow of $1,186,603. As al 31 July 2008 the @roup has a surplus of curent
assels over current Habfliles of $113,067 Including cash ressrve of $18,679. The Group's nel assets ara in defiolt in the amount of $458,450,

Nolwilhstanding the abave, the financlal statements have besn prepared on a golng concem basls whish cantemplates the continully of normal business
activities and realfsation of assets and setlement of llabilifles In the ordinary course of business.

To continus as a golng concem the Greup requines additional funding 1o be secured within the next year from sources Including:

*  deferment of tha repayment of exisling homowings from the major shareholders,

*  raising additiona! bormowings fram major sharehslders,
*  equity capital relsing, and
*  {he generation of sufficient funds from operating aclivities,

Having carefully assessed the unceralnties refating 1o likelihoad of securing additional funding, the Group's ability to effectivaly manage their expenditure
and cash Rows from operations. The directors befleve that the Group will continue 1o operate as 2 golng cancem for the foreseeable future and therefore iLis
appropriate to prepare the financlal slatemants on a going concern basts.

In the event that the assumptions underpinning the basis of preparation do not occur as anticipated, there Is significant uncertainty whether the Group will
cantinue to operate a going concem. If the Group is unable fo continue as a going concam it may be required to reatise its assets and exiinguish I's
liabilittes cther than in the normal course of business and at amounts different 1o those slated in the financial slatements,

No adjustments have been made 1o the financial reports relating 1o the rscoverahllity and elasstficatlon of the asset carmrying amounts or the classification of
liabilities that might be necessary should the Group not continue as a golng concem.

{a) Principles of Consolidation
A contralled entily fs any eniity over which Soda Brands Limited has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as fo obtain benelits
from its activities. In assessing the power ta govem, the existence and effest of hokiings of actual and potential voting rights are considered.

A lst of confrolled enfities is contained in Note 12 to the financial statements.

As at reporting date, the assefs and lfablliles of all controlled antities have been incarporated Into the consalidated financial statements as well as their
results for the year then ended. Where controlled entilfes have entered (left) the consolidated group during the year, thelr cperating resuils have been
Inzluded {excluded) from the date control was obtained (ceased).

All inter-group balances and transacfions between entities in the consalidated group, Including any unrealised profiis cr losses, have been eliminated
on consolldation. Accounting pelicies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with those adoptad by the parent
entity.

Minority Interests, being that partion of the profit or loss and net assets of subsidiarias atiributable to equity interests held by persons outside the group,
are shown separately within the Equity section of the consolldated Balance Sheet and in the consalidated Income Statement.

Business Gomblnatlons

Business combinzations occur where control aver anather businass is obiained and resuits In the consolidation of its assets and fiabiities. All business
combinations, including those involving entitles under common control, are accounted for by apolying the purchase method.

The purchese methed requires an acquirer of 1he business to be identified and for the cost of the acquisition and fair values of Identifiable assets,
limbililies and contingent llabilities ta be determined as at avquisition date, being the date that control Is obtained. Cost is delermined as the aggregata
of fair values of assets given, equity fssued and labilitles assumed in exchange for control together with costs directly attributable to the business
combinalion. Any deferred consideration payable Is discounted 1o present value using the entity’s incremantal borowing rate,

Goodwill is recognised initially at the excess of cost over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identiffable assets, llabililes and contingent
liabilities recognised. If the fair value of the acquirer’s Interest is greater than cost, the surplus is immediately recognised In profit or loss.

(b} Income Tax
The incoma tax expensa (ravenue) for the year comprises current income tax expense (Income) and defemed tax expense {incoma),




SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES: ' 437 2
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009 - -~ '3

!« Currentincome tex expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable Income calculated using appicable Income tax' fates enacted, or

(c)

()

(e)

substantially enacted, as at reporting date. Current tex liatilities (assels) are therefore measured at the amaounts expected to be'paid to (recovered
from) the relevant taxation authority. .

Deferred invome tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax llabllity balances during the year as well unused tax losses.

Current and deferred income tax expense {Incoms) is charged or credited directly to equity instead of the prafit or loss when 1he fax relates to fems
that are credited or charged direclly to equity.

Deferred tax assefs and fiabililies are ascertalned based on temporary differences arising between the 1ax bases of assets and llabilities and thelr
camying amounts In the financlal statements, Deferrad tax assels also result where amounls have been fully expensed but futura tax deductions are
avallable. No deferred Income tax will be recognised from the Inftial recagnition of an asset or llabliity, excluding a business combination, where there
I= no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and Nabllities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the aszat is reallsed or the liability is
sattlad, based on lax rates enacted or substantively enactad at reporting date. Thelr measurement also reflects the manner in wiich management
expects to recaver or settte the camying amount of the refated assat or Tiability.

Beferred tax assets relating fo temporary differences and unused fax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be avallable against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised,

Where temporary differences exlst in refation fo Investments in subsidiaries, branches, assoclates, and Joint ventures, deferred 1ax assets and liabilitias
are not recognised whare the fiming of the raversal of the temporary difference can be controfied and it Is not probable that the raversal will oceur in the
foreseeable future,

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it Is Intended that net settiement or simylianeous
realisation and settlement of the respective asset and Bability will ocour. Defamed tax assets and labliities are offset where a legally anforceable right
of set-off axists, the deferred tax assets and liabilifes relate to incama taxes levied by the same taxation authority on elther the same taxabla entity or
different taxable entifes where 1t is Intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and setllament of the respective asset and llabllity will ocour
in future periods in which significant amounts of deferred {ax assets or llabilitles are expecied 1o be tecoverad or settled.

Tax Consolidation

Soda Brands Limited and its whelly-owned Australian subsldlaries have formed an income tax consofidated group under tax consolidation leglslation,
Each entity in the group recognises iis own curment and deferred fax asssts and llabiites. Such taxes are measured using the ‘stand-alone {axpayer'
approach 1o aliocation. Current tax llablities (assets) and deferred tax assels arsing from unused tax ksses and tax credits In the subsidiares are
immediately transferred to the head entity.

Inventortes

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of manufactured products includes direct matedals, direct labour and
an appropriate porion: of variable and fixed querheads. Overheads are applled on the basls of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned on the
basis of weighted average costs.

Plant and Equipment
Each class of plant and equipment Is canied at cost or falr value as Indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and Impalmient
losses,

Plant and equipment

Piant and equipment are measured on the cost basis, The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensune K is not
in excess of the recoverabla amount from these asssts, The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be
recelved from the assels employment and subsequent disposal. The expecied net cash flows have been discounted 1o thelr present values in
determining recoverable amounts.

Depractation

The depreciable amount of alt fixed assets Is depreciated an a straight-line basls over the asset's useful life fo the consolidated group commencing
from the lime the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold impravements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or
the estimaled useful lives of the improvements,

The depreciation rates used for each ¢lass of dapreciable assels are;
Class of Flxed Asset Bapreciation Rate
Plant and equipment 15-40%

The assels’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheat date. An asset's camying amount Is
wrilten down immediately to It recoverable amount if the asset's caimying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are datermined by comparing proceeds with the carrylng amount. These gains and lasses are included I the Income
statement. When revalued assels are sold, amounts inchuded In the revalization reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

Leasas

Leases of fixed assels where substanfially all the risks and benefils incldentat to the ovmnership of the asset, but not the legal ownership that are
transferred to entilies in the consalidated group are classified as finance leases. Finance lsases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at
the lower of tha amounts equal to the fair value of the feased property or the present value of the minfmurm lease payments, Including any guaranteed
residual values, Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the leazs liability and the lease inlerest expense for the period,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2009

Leased assets are depreclated on a stralght-line basis aver the shorter of thelr estimated useful livas or the lease term, Lease payments for operating
leases, wiiere substantially all the risks and benefits ramaln with the lessor, are charged as expenses In the pariods In which they are Incurred, Lease
Incentives under operating lsases are recognlsed a3 a llability and amontised on a straight-line basis over the Ffa of the lease term.

Financlal [nstruments

Initlal Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financlal liabllitles are recognised when the entity becomes a parly to the contractual provisions 1o the instrument. For financial
assets, this fs equivalent o the date that the Company commiis iizelf to either purchasa or sell the asset (le trade date accounting Is adopted).
Financial instruments are Initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs except whera the Instrument is classified 'at fair value through profit or
loss' in which case iransaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immedrately.

Classification and Subzequent Msasurement

Finance tnstrumenis are subsequently meesured at elther fair value, amortised cost using the eflactive Interest rate method or cost. Fair value
represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a lability seifled, between knowledgeable, wiling partles. Where avallable, quoted
prices In an active mariet are used to determine fair valus, In other circumstances, valuation technlques are adopted.

Amortised cost is calculated as (a) the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability ts measured at inifial recognition (b} less principal
repayments {g) plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount initially recognised and the maturity amount
calculaled using the effective interest mathod; and (d) less any reduction for impaimment.

The effective Interast mathod is used to allocata Interest Income or interest sxpense over the ralavant period and Is equlvalent to the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payiments or receipts (Including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected Iie (or
when this cannot bs refiably predicted, the contractual term) of the financlal fnstrument Io the net camying amount of the financial esset or financial
llabllity. Revisions io expected future net cash flows will necessilate an adjustment {o the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an income
or expense in profit or loss.

Tha group does not designate any Interests In subsidiaries, as being subject 1o the requirements of accounting standards specifically applicable to
financial Instuments, .

{} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Firancial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss’ when they are either hekd for trading for the purpose of short term profit taking,
dedvatives not held for hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such to avald an accounting mismalch or to enable performance
evaluation where a group of financlal assals s managed by key' management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with & documented risk
management or Investment sirateqy. Such assats ara subssquently measured at falr value with changes In carrying value being included in profit
or loss,

{il} Loans and recaivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are
subsequanily measured at amortised cost.

{lll} Heldto-maturity investments
Hald-to-maturity investments are non-derivativa financial assets that have fixad maturities and fixed or determinable payments, and it is the group's
intention to hald these Investments {o maturity, They ana subsequently measured at amoriised cost,

{iv} Available-for-sale financial asssts
Avallable-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financlal assets that are either not suitable 1o ke classified into other categaries of financial
assels due to their nature, or they are deslanated as such by management. They comprise Investments in the equity of olher entities where there Is
neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.

{¥v) Financlal Liabilities
Non-derivalive financlal llabillles (exsluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amorised cost.

Falr value
Valuation techniques are applied to determine the falr value for ail unlisted securities, including recent arm's length iransactons, reference to similar
instruments and option pricing models.

impalrment

At each reparting date, the group assess whetfier there Is objetive evidence that a financial instrument has been Impaired. In the case of avallable-for
sale financial instruments, @ prolonged decline in the value of the instrument Is considered to determing whether an impalrment has ardsen. Impalrment
losses are recognised in the Income statement.

Financlal Guarantees ‘
Where material, financial guarantees Issued, which requires the issuer to make spacified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it Incurs because
a specified debior fails to make payment when dus, are recognised as a financial liability at fair value on initial recognition.

The guaranies Is subsequenily measurad al the higher of the best estimate cf the obligation and the amount Initialty recognised less, when appropriate,
ctimulalive amartisation in accordance with AASB 118: Revenus. Where the entity gives guaraniees in exchange for a fes, revenue Is racognised
under AASB 118.

The fair value of financial guarantee contracts has been assessed using a probabillty weighted discounted cash flow approach. The probability has
been based on:

~the Bkellhood of the guaranteed party defawlting in a year period;

~ the praportion of the exposure that is not expected fo be recovered due to the guaranteed party defaulting; and

- the mastimum loss exposed if the guaranteed party were to default.

Deracognition
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' Financlal assets are derecognised where the contractual fdights to receipt of cashflows expires or the asset Is iransferred in another party whereby tha .~ °
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" entity no longer has any significant continulng involvement in the risks and benefits assoclated with the asset. Flnancial kabilities are derecognised '
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where the related obligations are either discharged, cancelled or expire, The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished
or transferred to another party and the falr value of consideration paid, Including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilifes assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of Assets

At each reporiing date, the group reviews the camying values of lis tangibls and intangible assels to determine whether there Is any indication that
those assats have baen Impalred. If such an indicalion exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of tha asset's fair value less cosls
to sell and value in use, is compared to the assets carrylng value. Any excess of the assels camying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to
the income statement.

Impalrment testing |s performed annually for goodwill and intanglbla as=els with indefinite livas.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the greup estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assat belongs-

Intangibles

Goodwill

Gooedwill and gaodwill on consolidation are Initlally recorded at tha amount by which the purchase price for a husiness combinaiion exceeds the falr
value attributed 1o the interest in the net fal value of Identifiable assets, liabllites snd contingent liabililes at date of acquisiicn. Soodwll an
acquisitions of subsidiaries = included in intangible assets. Goodwlll an acquisltion of assoclates is included in investments in assoclates. Goodwil Is
tested annually for Impalment and caried at cost lass ascumulated impairment losses. Galns and losses on the disposal of an entity includs the
carrying amount of goudwill relating ta the antity sold.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Functional and presentation currency
The functional cutrency of each of the group's entiffes Is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which that entity
operates. The consolidated financlal statements ars presented in Australian dollars which s the parent entity's functional and presentation cumency.

Transactlon and balances

Forgigh cirrency transaclions are translated into funclional cumency using the exchange rates prevalling at the date of the transaction. Forelgn
currency monetary items are translated at the year-end sxichange rate. Non-monetary ltems measured at histerical cost conlinue to be canfed at the
exchange rafe at the date of the fransaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fairvaluss
were determined.

Exchange diferances ansing on the transkation: of monetary items are recognised In Ihe fncome statement, except where deferred In equity as a
qualtfying cash flow or net investment hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translatlon of non-monetary kems ara recognised directly in equity 1o the extent that the gain or loss Is directly
recognised i equity, otherwise the exchange difference is recognised In tha income statement.

Group companies
The financial resuils and position of fareign aparations whose funclionel currency is different from the group’s prasentation currency are translated as
follows:

— assets and liabilities are transtated at yearand exchange rates prevalling at that reporting date;
— income and expenses are ranslated at average exchange rates for the period; and
— retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on iranslation of forelgn operaliens are transfemed direcily 1o the groups forelgn currency translation reserve in the
balance sheet. These differences are recognised in the income statement In the period In which the oparation is disposed,

Employes Benefits
Provislon is made for the company's llabllity for employee benefits arfsing from services rendared by emplayees to balance date, Employes benefils
that are expected to be setiled within one year have been measurad at the amounts expected 1o be paid when the liability Is seftled.

Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimatsd fulure cash outflows to be made for those
benefits. Those cash flows are discounted using market vields on national government bonde with terms to maturlty that match the expected timing of
cash flows.

Equity-settled compensation

The group operates equity-sattled share-based payment employes share and oplion schemes. The falr value of the equiy 1o which employees become
entitled Is measured at grant date and recognised as an expense over the vesting period, with a corresponding Increase to an equity account. The fair
value of shares is ascertained as the markel bid price. The fair value of aptions Is ascertalned using a Black-Scholes pricing madel which incorporates
all market vesting conditions. The number of shares and options expected fo vast I3 reviewed and adjusted at each reporting date such that the
amount recagnised for services raceived as consideration for the equity instruments granted shall be based on the number of equily instruments that
eventually vest,

Provisions
Proviglons are recognieed when the group bas a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will result and that outflow can be refiably measured.

Provision for Warrantles

Provision is made In respect of the consolidated group's estimated lablity en alf products and services under warranty at balance date, The provision is
measured as the present value of future cash flows estimaied to be required to ssitle the warranty obfigation. The future cash flows have been
estimaled by referance to the consolldated gratip's history of warranty elalms,
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(m) Cash and Cash Equlvalents . '
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-tenm highly liguid investments with ariginal malurities of
three months or less, and bank overdraRs. Bank overdrafts ere shawn within short-erm borrowings In surrent liabilities on the balance sheet.

{n} Revenue and OtherIncoma
Revenue is measured at the falv value of the consideration received or recelvable after taking inte account any frade discounts and volume rebales
allowed. Any consideration deferred is treated as the provision of finance and is discounted at & rate of interest that is generally accepted in the market
for simllar arrangements. The difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount ultimataly recatved is Interest revenus,

Revenue from the sale of goods Is recognised at the point of delivery as this comesponds to the fransfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods and the cessation of all involvement In those goods.

Interest ravenus Is recognised using the effective Interest rate method, which, for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.
Dividend revenue Is recognised when the right o receive a dividend has been established.

All revenus is stated net of the amount of goods and seivices tax (GST).

{0} Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs direclly atiributable to the acquisitic, construction or production of assels that necassarily take a substantlal perlod of ime to prepare
for their intended use or ssle, are added to the cost of those assets, unti! such tme as the assets are substantlally ready for their intanded use or sale,

All othier borrowing costs are recognised In income in the period In which they are incurred,

(p} Goods and Services Tax {GST)
Revenues, expenses and assels ara recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Tax
Office. In these clreumslances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an ltem of the expense.

Receivables and payablas In the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.

GCash flows are presented in the cash flow stalement on a gross basfs, except for the GST companent of investing and financing activitles, which are
disclosed as aperating cash flows.

(a) Comparatlve Figuras
When raquirad by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform o changes in presentation for the current financial year.

(r} Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
The directors svaluale estimates and judgments Incorporated into the financial report based on historical knowiedge and best available currant
information. Estimates assume a reasonable expactation of future events and are based on curnent trends and economic dala, obtained both externally
and within the group.

Key Extimates

(a) Impalrment
The group assessss Impaimment at each reporting date by evaluaiing conditions and events specific o the Group that may be indicalive of impalrment
triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assels are reassessed using valus-in-use calculations which incorporate varous key assumptions.

As a result of significant decline In gross margins and sales,an impairment of $3,808,861 has been recognised in respect of gondwill at reporting date,

Key Judgements

(a) Provision for Impairment of Receivables
The directors belleve that a provislon for doubtiul debts of $21,198 (2008: $2,243) is reasonable and that all other trade debfors are fully recaverable as
at the end of finansiel year.

The directors believe that a proviglon for obsolete and slaw moving stock of $263,633 (2008: nil) Is reasonable and thal all other inventories are futfy
recoverable as at the end of financial year.

(aa) New Accounting Standards for application in futurs perlods

The AASB has lssued new, revised and amended stendards and interpretations that have mandatory application dates for future reporiing periods. The
Group has declded agalnst early sdopiion of these standards. A discussion of those future requirements and thelr impact on the Group is as follows:-

» AASB 8 "Operaling Segments” and AASE 2007-3 “Amendments o Australian Accounting Standards arfsing from AASB 8 [AASE 5, AASE 6, AASE 1 02,
AASB 107, AAEB 119, AASB 127, AASB 134, AASE 136, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038 {applicable for annual reporting periods commancing from 1 January
2009). This standard replaces AASB 114 and requlres kentification of operating segments an the basis of Intemal reports that are regulatory reviewed by
the group's board for the purposes of declsion making. Whilst the impact of this standard cannot be assassed at this stage, thare is the potential for more
segmenis lo be identified. Given the lower economic level at which segments may be defined, and the fact that cash generating units cannot ba bigger than
aperaling segments, impairment calculations may be affected. Management presently do not belleve Impalmment will result however.

= AASB 101 "Presentation of Financial Statements”, AASB 2007-8 “Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arsing fram AASB 101", and AASB
2007-10 "Further Amendments to Australian Accounfing Standards arising from AASE 101" (all applicable fo annual reporting perdeds commencing from 1
January 2008). The revised AASE 101 and amendments supersede the previous AASE 101 and redefines the composition of financial stalements Including
the inclusion of a staternent of comprehensiva income. ‘There will be no measuremant or recognition impact on the Group.
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» AASB 123 "Borrowing Cosls™ and AASE 2007-8 “Amendments to Australlan Accounting Standards arising from AASB 123 [AASE 1, AASB 101, AASB -
107, AASB 111, AASBE 116 & AASB 138 and Interpretations 1 & 12]" {applicable for annual reporting periods commencing from 1 January 2009). The
revised AASE 123 has removed the opiion to expense all bomowing costs and will therefore require the capitalisation of all borrowing casts direclly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Management has determined that there will be no effect on the Grupasa
poficy of capitalising qualifying borrowirg costs has been maintained by the Group.

= AASB 2008-1 "Amendments to Ausbralian Accounting Standard — Share based Payments: Vesting Conditions and Cancefaticns [AASE 2] {applicable for
annual reporting periods commencing from 1 January 2008). This amendment to AASE 2 clarifies that vesting conditions consist of service and
performanca canditions only. Other elements of a share based payment transacilon should therefore ba considered for the purposes of determining falr
value. Cancellations are alsa required to be treated in the same manner whether cancelled by the entity or by another party.

« AASB 2008-2 "Amendments ta Austrailan Accounting Standards — Puttable Financlal Instruments and Obfigations Arising on Liguidation [AASE 7, AASBE
101, AASB 132 & AASE 139 & Interpretailon 21" (applicable for annual reporting perlods commeneing from 1 January 2009). These amendments Introduce
an exceptlon to the definitlon of a financial flabliity to classify as equity instruments certain puttable financial Instruments and eertain other financial
instruments that impose an obligation fo deliver a pro-rata share of net assets only upon liquidation;

* AASB 2008-5 "Amendments to Australian Accaunting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project” {July 2008) {AASE 2008-5) and AASE
2008-6 “Further Amendments to Australlan Accounling Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project” (July 2008) (AASS 2008-6) detail
numercus non-urgent but necessary changes to accounting standards arising from the JASE’s annual improvements praject. Mo changes are expected to
materially affect the Group.

The Group does not anticipate early adoption of any of the above reporting requirements and does nol expect them fo have any matenal effect on the
Group's financlal statements.

Note 2 Revenue and Other Income
Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2008 20608 2000 2008
$ § $ 8

BSales Revenue

— sale of goods 2,362,904 2622177 2,326,730 4,047,288
Total Sales Revenue 2,362,004 2,822,177 2,328,730 4,047,288
Other Ravenus

— interest received 2{a) 1,482 33,238 1,482 33,238
Total Other Revenue 1,482 33,238 1.482 33,238
Total Sales Revenue and Other Revenua 2,364,386 2,655,415 2,328,213 4,080,626
(a) Interest revenue from:

— other persons ' 1,482 33,238 1.482 33.238

Telal Interest revenue on financial assets not at fair value through proiit or loss 1,452 33238 4,482 33,238
Note 3 Profit for tha Year
Consalidated Group Parent Enfity
2009 2008 2009 2008
{a) Expsnses $ 5 $

Cost of sales 2,278,688 1,001,006 2,253,520 1,089,251
interest expense on financial liabiitles not at falr value through profit or loss:

— Uldmate parent entity 15,288 - 15,288 -
— Related companies 14,597 - 15,297 -
— Other persons 38,765 15,677 38,065 15,677
Tatal intarest expense 58,849 15,677 68,649 15,677
Impalment of non-current investments - - 3,808,961 -
Impairment of goodwill 3,808,851 - - -
Bad and doubtful debts:

— trade receivables 143,260 - 113,260 -
Total bad and doubtful debts 113.260 - 113,260 -
Rental expense on operating leases

— mirimum lease payments - 53,674 - 53674
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 96,006 - £6,006 -

Note 4 Income Tax Expense
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
Note
(a) Thecomponents of tax expense comprise:
Current fax - - - -
Deferred tax 18 - - - -

Recaupment of prior year tax losses
Under proviston In respect of prior years
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Deferred tax assets not braught to aczeunt, dus to no reasonable assurance of profit in foreseeable futures-

(b) The prima facie tax on profit fram ordinary aclivities before
Income tax Is reconclled 10 the income tax as follows:
Prima facle tax payable on profit from ordinary activities
before income tax at 30% (2008; 30%)

— consolidated group (1,863,695) (96,135)

— parent entify {1,865,8684) 382,804
Add:

Tax effect of:

— other non-allowable items - 24,428 - 24,428
— Non deductible impaimment 1,142,688 = 1.142,888 -

(721,007} {T1.707)  (722,975) 407,232

Less:
Tax effect of;

— Other deductible expenses 3,033 2,727 3,833 2727
Income tax attributable to entity (724,840) (74,434)  {726,808) 404,505

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, due to no reasonable assurance of prefit in foreseeabla fulura:-
Note 5 Interests of Key Management Personnel (KMP) *

Refer to the Remuneration Report contained In the Report of the Direclors' for details of the remuneration paid ar payable 1o each member of Key
Management Personnel of the Group for he year ended 31 July 2008,

The lotals of remuneration pald to KMP of the Company and the Group during the year are as follows:

2009 2008

$ 3
Short-term employae banefits 317212 254,932
Post-employment benefils 11,611 30,004
Other long term benefits - -
Temlnation benefits - -
Share-bazed paymenis - -

328,822 284,038

KMP Options and Rights Holdings
The number of oplions over ordinary shares In Soda Brands Limited held during the financial year by each KMP of the Group s as follows:-

31 July 2009 Balance st  Granted as remuneration Exsrcised Otherchanges Balance stend Vested diving Vasted and Vested and

beginning of duringtheyear  duringthe during the year afyear the year exerclsable upexercisable
year year

FAIRFULL Andrew {Nop- 250,000 - - - 250.000 - - -

exac Chalrman)

KROK Mexim (Mon- - - - - “ - - .

axacutiva Director)*

BEINART Steven (CEQ - - - - - - - - -

Exacullva Dlrecton)*

PHOTAKIS, Ghristopher - - - - - - - -

(Non-exec Diractor}

GHATTAS, Nicolas 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 - - -

(Exacutive Director)

DIMITRIDIS, Stavros - - - - - - - -

(Non-executive Director)

BRETT, Hiton {(Mon-exsc 250,000 - - - 250,000 - - -

Director}

KULMAR, Sfephen {Non- 250,000 - - - 250,000 - - -

exec Director)

Kistani Holdings Pty Ltd ¢ - -

13,081,673 13,081,673 - - -

McGIBBON, - - . - - - - .
Christopher William
{General Manager -

shared sarvices)
1,750,000 - - 13,081,673 14,831,673 - - -

31 July 2008 Balance at Granted as remuneration Exercisad Othar changes Balance at end Vasted during  Vestsd and Vastad and

beginning of during the year during tha during tha ysar nfyear the ypar exercisable unexercisable

year yoar

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non- 250,000 - - - 250,003 - - -
exec Chalman)
KROK Maxim (Non- - - - . - - - -
execttive Director)*
BEINART Steven (CEO - - - - - - - - -

Fyaridhra MYisarcdari*
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PHOTAKIS, Chiristophar . .- - i . - - .

(Non-axec Director)

GHATTAS, Nicolas 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000

(Execullve Director)

DIMITRITNS, Stavros - - - - - - - -

(Non-executive Director)

BRETT, Hiffon {Nan-exec 250,000 - - - 250,000 - - .

Diractor}

KULMAR, Stephen {Non- 250,000 - - - 250,000 250,000 - -

exec Dlrector)

Klstanl Holdings Pty Ltd * . - - - - - - -
1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 1,250,000 -~ 1,000,000

* Mr. Maxim Krok and Mr. Steven Belnart are nominee directors appeinted by Maximize Equity Pty Lid, which is the ultimate holding company for Kistanl
Haoldings Ply Ltd. The options are granted to Kistani Holdings Pty Ltd on 09 September 2008 as part of purchase consideration to acquira the 100 equity in
Kistan! Ptv Ltd.

KMP Sharcholdings
The number of ordinary shares in Soda Brands Limited held during the financlal year by sach KMP of the Group is as follows:-
31 July 2003 Balanca at Granted as l[ssuaii on  Otherchanges Salance at

beginning of remuncration  exarcisa oF  durlng the year end of year
yenr durlng the year options during

the year

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec 115,000 - - -° 115,000
KROK Maxim [Non-exectitive Director)* - - - - -
BEINART Steven (CEQ -Execttive - - - . -
Director)*
PHOTAKIS, Christopher (Non-exec - - - - -
GHATTAS, Nicolas (Executive 1,275,000 - - - 1,275,000
DIMITRID?S, Stavros (Non-executive - - - - N
BRETT, Hiton (Nen-exec Diractor) 150,000 - - - 150,000
KULMAR, Stephen {Non-exec Direcior) - - - - -
Kistani Holdings Pty Lid * - - « 11,388,080 11,389,080
McGIBBON, Christopher William - - - - -
(General Manager - shared services)

1 ‘540!0[10 - - 11,369,050 12908060
31 July 2008 Balance at Gramod as Issuad an  Otherchanges Balance at

beginning of remuneration exercise of  during the year end of year
year during the year aptions during

the year

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec 75,000 - - 40,000 115,000
KROK Maxim (Nan-executive Diractor)* - . - - -
BEINART Steven (CEO -Execulive - - - - -
Dlrector)*
FHOTAKIS, Christopher (Non-sxec - - - - -
GHATTAS, Nicolas (Executive 1,275,000 - - - 1,275,000
DIMITRIDIS, Stavros (Non-execulive - - - - .
BRETT, Hilton {Non-exec Director) 150,000 - - - 150,000
KULMAR, Stephen {iNon-exec Director) - - - - -
Kistani Holdings Pty Ltd * - n - - -
McGIBRON, Christopher Willam - - - - -
(General Manager - shared services)

1,500,000 - - 40,600  1,540.000

* Mr. Maxim Krok and Mr. Steven Belnart are nomines directars appontad by Maximize Equity Pty Ltd, which is the ultimale halding company for Kisianl
Holdings Pty Ld. The shares of the group are purchased by Kistan Holdings Pty Lid on 08 Saptember 2008,

Othar KMP Transactlons
Thera have been no olher transactions Involving equity instruments other than those desaribed in the tables ahove.

Note G Auditors’ Remuneration
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2000 2008 2009 2008
$ . 3 $ §
Remuneration of the auditor of the parent enfity for:
— awditing or reviewing the financlal report 15,000 20,500 15,000 20,500
— taxaticn services 3,600 2,000 3,600 2,000
— due dlfgence sanvices 1,620 - 1,620 -

— laxalion setvices provided by refated practica of auditor - - - -
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Remuneration of other auditors of subsidiaries for: e
— auditing or reviewing the financlal repori of subsidiaries : - - - -
Nota 7 Earnings per Share
Consalidated Group
2000 2008
$ $
(a) Reconclliiation of eamings to profit or loss
Profit (6,212,318) {320,450)
Earnings used to calculate basic EPS (6,212,518) (320,450)
Eamings used In the caloulation of dilutive EPS {6,212,318} {320,450)
{b) Recancilfation of eamings to profit or ioss from continuing aperations
Prafit from confinuing operations . (6,212,318) {320,450)
Earnings used to calculate bastc EPS from continuing operations {6:212,318) (320,450}
Eamings used in the calculation of diutive EPS from continuing operatians (6,212,218) {320,450}
(c) Reconciliation of eamings {o profit or loss from discontinuing operations
Frofit from discentinulng operations - -
Eamings used lo calculated baslc EPS from discontinuing operationg - -
No. No,
{d) Welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding dudng the year used in 44,787,613 34,000,000
calculating basic EPS .
Weighted averaga number of options outstanding 14,388,065 1,750,000
Welghted average numbsr of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used In 58,165,578 35,750,000
calculaling dilutive EPS
Naote 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Nota Consolidated Group Parent Enilty
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ § 3 $
CGash at bank and in hand 19,679 120,024 18,022 117,761
26 18,679 120,024 18,022 117,761
Recenclllation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown In the cash flow statement is
reconcited to items In the balance sheet as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents 19,879 120,024 18,022 117,764
19,679 120,024 18,022 117,761
Nota 9 Trade and Other Recaivables
Naote Consolldated Group Parent Entity
20039 2008 2008 2008
§ g § §
CURRENT
Trades receivables 308,163 364,607 280,824 351,087
Provision for impairment 9(a) {21,168} {2,243) (21,188) (2,243)
286,955 362,364 268,628 358,354
Other receivables - - . 344,988
Amounts receivable from;
— wholly-owned subsidiaries - - 171,114 373,304
Tolal current frade and ather receivables 286,855 362,364 439!737 150?4!048

{a} Provisicn For Impaimment of Receivables
Current trade and term receivables are non-Interest bearing and ganerally on 30 - 90 day terms. A provision for impaiment is racognised when their |s
an abfective evidence that an individual trade or term receivabla is impalred. These amounts have been Included In the other expenses item,

Movemaent In the provision for impalmient of recelvables Is as follows;

Opening Chargefortha  Amounts Closing
Balance Year Written OF Balance
1 August 31 July 2008
2007
$ $ $ $
Consolidated Group
(i) Gurrent trade receivables - 2,243 - 2.243

2241 - 7243
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Parent Entity
() Curent trade recelvables

Consolidated Group
{} Cumenttrade receivablas

Parent Entity
(i) Current trade recelvables

. 2.243 - 2,243
» 2243 - 2,243
Opening argeforthe  Amounts Closing
Balance Year Written Off Batance
1 August 31 July 2008
2008
$ § ] £
2,243 109,478 90,523 24,198
2,243 109,478 80,523 21,198
2,243 108,478 90,523 21,198
2,243 109.478 80,523 21,198

T

There are no balances within trade and other recelvables that contain assets that are not impaired. Itis expected thesa balances will be received when

due, Impaired assats ara provided for in full,
Creadit rigk - Trads and Other Receivables

The Group has no signifieant concentration of credit fizk with respect to any sihgle counterparty or group of counterparlies other than those recelvables
spedifically provided for and mentloned within Note 9. The main sourca of credit risk to the Group Is considered to relate to the class of assels described as

Trade and Other Recelvablss.

(b) Financlal Assets classlfiad as recelvables
Trade and other Recefvables
— Total Current

Lass construction contracts In progress
Financial Assetls

Nota 10 Inventariss

CURRENT
At cost
Finished goods

At net realisable valus
Finfshed goeds
Provision for slow moving/ obsolete stock

Note 11 Other Financial Assets

NON CURRENT
Avaiable-for-sale financial asseis

(g} Avalfable-for-sale financial asseis comprisa:
NON CURRENT
Unlisted invastments, at recoverable amount
— shares in other corperatlons at cost
Less: Impaimment provisian

Total non-current avallable-for-sala financial assets

Note 12 Controlled Entitfes

(a) Controlled Entiies Consciidated

Subsldiaries of Soda Brands Limited:
S0 Distributions Pty Ltd

Salan Only Piy Lid

Soda Brands (NZ) Limited

Note

28

Note

Note

11a

20

Country of Incorporation

Australla
Australla
New Zealand

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2008 2008 2008 2008
$ $ § %
286,955 362,384 439737 1,074,046
288,955 362,384 439,737 1,074,046
286,955 362,364 439,737 1,074,048
Consclidated Group Farent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
13 3 $ $
- 1,719,577 - 1,672,450
- 1.710.577 - 1,672,450
905,220 - 824,846 -
{263,533) - {263,533) -
641,687 1,719,577 621,313 1,672,450
Cansolidated Group Parant Enfity
2008 2008 2009 2008
$ 8 $ $
- - 704 3,283,840
- - 704 3,293,340
- - 3809885 3,293,840
- - (3,808,861) -
- - 704 3,203,340
- - 704 3,293,840
Percentaga Owned (36)*
2000 2008
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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R SN -FE AR -2 R
RS FISTAREE B ER L At

Soda Brands (UK} Limited United Kingdom @ =« < 100% 100%
Kistani Pty Lid Australa ¢+ . ' 100% 0%

* Parcentage of voling pawer is In proportion to ownership
All the sbave entittes sre dormant (non-operating) during the financial year.

(b) Acquizltlon of Gontrolled Entltles

On 09 Seplember 2005 the parenl entity completed the acqulsition of 100% of Kistani Pty Lid and became entitied to all profits eamed from 09
September 2008 for a purchase consideration of:

Issuance of 8,591,282 ordinary shares; and

Issuance of a further 2,777,778 ordinary shares at an issue price of 18 cents per share; and

Issuance of 2,880,000 ordinary shares after 31 July 2011, subject to agreed performance {argets; and

Issuance of 11,831,673 opflons over unissued ordinary shares at an Issue price of 20 cents per share, exerclsable befora 31 January 2010; and
Issuanca of 100,000 optlons over unissued ordinary shares at an issue price of 25 cents par share, exerclsable before 01 August 2011; and

Issuance of 500,000 options over unissued ordinary shares at an issus price of 26 cents per share, exerclsable hefore 01 August 2012; and
Issuance of 500,000 oplions over unissued ondinary shares at an lssue price of 25 cents por share, exerclsable before 01 August 2012; gnd
Issuance of 150,000 options over unissued ordinary shares to Richard Staniey at an issue price of 25 cents per shars, exerclsable before 01

- August 2012; and
(¢} Optian to acqulra an entity

During the vear, the company enterad inte a put & call aplion agreement with Christopher Willlam McGibbon,
acquire the entlre share capital of Innexa Group Ply Ltd (a company incorporated In Australla) (Innoxa) fo
decides to exerclse the call option, subject to Innoxa mesting certaln conditlen,

ordinary shares of Soda Brands Limited,

Note 13 Property, Plant and Equipment

General Managarf Campany Secretary to
r a option Jee of $1. Should the company
the purchase cansideration will be setiled by lssuance of 570,000

Consolidated Group Farent Entity
2000 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ §
PLANT AND EGUIFMENT
Fiant and equipment:
At cost 442,128 568,208 442,129 237,248
Accumulated depreciation (383,780} (375,483}  (383,730) (213,520}

Total Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Movements [n Carrying Amounts

58,345 192,720

58,349 23,719

Movernents in carrylng amounts for each elass of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the cument financlal vear.

Plant and Total
Equipment
$ §
Consolidated Group:
Balance af 1 August 2007 275,081 275,081
Additions 48,977 49,977
Depreclation expense {132,338) (132,338)
Belance at 31 July 2008 162,720 192,720
Uisposals (56,008) (56,008)
Depreciation expense 78, 8,36
Balance at 31 July 2009 58,349 68,348
Parent Entity:
Balance at 1 August 2007 123,033 123,033
Additions 33,024 33,024
Depreclation expense (132,338) (132,338)
Balance at 31 July 2008 23,71¢ 23719 _
Additions 169,001 168,001
Dispesals (56,008) {56,008)
Depreciation expense (78,365) (78,365)
Balance at 31 July 2009 58i349 58,349

Nota 14 intangible Assets

Goodwill
“rot

Consolidated Group Parant Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
] s $ §

aDAnD RDA aARD dAs
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Accumulated impaired lossas (3.808.961) - - -
Net canying value - 3,283,138 - -
Tatal irdangiblas - 3,293,138 - -
Conszolldated Group:
Gaodwill
§

Year ended 31 July 2008
Balance at the beginning of year 3,021,756
Additions 271,380
Disposals -
Amertisation charge -
Impalrment kosses -

3255138
Year ended 31 July 2000
Balance at the beginning of year . 3,293,136
Additions 515,825
Impakment osses (3.808,961)

Closing value at 31 July 2000 .

ImpzTrment Disclosures
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units which are based on the qroup’s reporting segments

2009 2008
s $
Distribution segment - 3,203,136 -
Total - 3,293,136

In terms of its accounting policy In respect of goodwill, the company performs fts Impaiment testing at 31 July with the most recant impalrment testing being
done as af 31 July 2009, As a result of the slgrificant decline in gross margins and sales goodwill Is Impalred by $3,808,861 (2008: ni).

The recoverable amount of the cash generating units (CGU's) hes been detenmined basad on value|n use calculation which discount the estimated future

cash flows expected to be generated from the respectiva CGU's,

in the case of all CGUs, the estimated cash fiows for the first year of analysis are based on management's intamal reforecasts for the 2010 financlal year.
Such forecasts taka Into account the lavel of sales and grass margins and detailed expense estimates by expense type. The estimated year 1 cash flows
have been projected for a further 4 years, taking account of management's expectations. A long term growth rate of 3.0 % { 34 July 2009 : 5.0%) has been
applied to determine the termina! value of the CBU's. A pre=-tax discount rate of 12% (31 July 2008: 12%) has been applied to such future cash flows.

Nota 15 Other Assets

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
§ $ $ 3
CURRENT
Prepayments 39,583 24,030 33,583 24,930
Other assets 28,913 341,888 28,913 -

62,498 366,818

62,4088 24930

Note 16 Trade and Other Payables

Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2008 2008 2008 2008
$ & S k4
CURRENT
Unsecured llabiliies
Trada payables 327,058 286,241 327,237 283,802
Sundry payables and accrued expenses 381,940 972,267 372,256 $688,783
Amalinis payable to:
— ultimate parent enfity 95,441 - 95,441 -
— dothar related parties 77.7326 - 77,738 .
‘16{a) 8835072 1,258,508 372660 1.252!8?5
Nota Consclidated Group Parent Entity
2008 2008 2009 2008
5 $ $ ]
(3) Financial llabilittes at amortised cost classified as trade and other payables
Trade and cther payables
— Total Cument 883,072 1,258,508 872,660 1,252,675

CLLGLT A e mam

Ty - -
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Financtal llabililes as trade and ather payables 267 '/ B83D72 1268508 72,668 1262675

Note 17 Borrowings o

Nota Consolldated Group Parent Enlity
2009 2008 2008 2008
% § $ $
CURRENT
NON-CURRENT
Unsecured linbifities
Ultimate parent enlity 15,288 - 315,288 -
Relaled entitfes 314,597 - 314,597 -
Total borrowings 28 628,885 . 628,885 -

The loan documents would be drawn between Soul Private Equily Limited (SPEL) and Maximize Equity Ply Ltd (MEQ), who would register a fixad and
floaling charge with ASIC uver Seda Brands assels.

Noto 18 Tax
Consolldated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2008 2008
$ § $ 3
GURRENT
Incame Tax Payable - - -~ -
TOTAL - - - -

Deferred tax assets not brought fo account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the conditions for dedustibility sel out In Note #(b) occur:
- tamporary differences $21,468 (2008: $24,228)
« lax logses; operaing losses $1,296,091 (2008: $571,452)

Note 13 Provisions
Consolidated Group * Parent Entity
2008 2008 2009 2008
CURRENT $ § $ 3
Short-term Employee Benefits
Opening balance at 1 August 2008 24,001 9,090 24,001 9,080
Additional provisions 47,881 14,911 47,861 14,941
Amounts used (57,184) - {57,184) -
Balance at 31 July 2009 14,678 24,001 14,678 24,001
Analys!s of Total Provisions Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2008 2008
$ $ $ $
Current 14,678 24,001 14,678 24,001
Non-cumant - - - -
14,678 24,001 14,678 24,001
Mote 20 Issued Capital
Consolidated Group Parent Entlly
2009 2008 2009 2008
§ $ $ L3
46,150,208 (2008; 34,000,000) fully pald ordinary shares 7,885,008 €.912,808 7,885,006 6,912,808

7,886,008 6912,808  7.885,006 6,912,808

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
(a) Ordinary Sharss 2009 2008 2009 2008
No, No. No, No.

At the beginning of teporting pariod 24,000,000 34,000,000 34,000,000 34,000,000
Bhares issued during year

— 9/05/2008 12,092,465 - 12,092,485 -

— 30/07/2009 63,743 - B3,743 ~
At reporting date 48,156,208 34000000 468,155,208 34,000,000

Ordinary shares participate In dividends and the procaeds an winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the number of shares held

Al the shareholders meetings each ordinary share Is entitlied to one vate when a poll is called, otherwisa each shareholder has one vote on a show af
hands

{b) Options
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® Fer informaticn relating to the Soda Brands Limited employee option plan, Including detalls of aptions issued, exercised and lapsed during the
financial year and the opllons oulstanding at year-end. Refer 1o Nole 23; Share-based Paymenis. o

(i) For information relating to share options issued to key management personnel during the financlal year. Refer to Note 23; Share-based Payments.
{iif) For Information relating fo share options Issued for acquisition of controlled entities during the financial year. Refer to Note 12: Controlled Entities,

{c) Capital Management
Management strives to canirol the capltal of the group In order to malntain a goad debt fo exquily ratlo, pravide the shareholders with adequate retums
and enstrre that the group can fund Hs operations and continue as a going concem.

There are no extemally imposed capital requirements.

Management has been challenged fo managa the group’s capital due to the adverse operaling resuils.

Consolldated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
Nota $ s $

Total borrowings 16, 17 1,512,957 1,258,508 1,502,554 1,252,675

Less cash and cash equivalents 8 18,679 120,024 18,022 117,761

Net debt 1,493,278 1,138,484 1,484,532 1,134,813

Total equity (458,488) 4772130 (316,611} 4,930,071

Tatal capital 1,034,808 5810614 1 .167@22 6!064!984

Gearing ratlo 144% 19% 127% 19%
Note 21 Segment Raporting

Distribution
2009 2008
$ 3
Primary Reporting - Business Scgmonts
REVENUE
Extemal Sales 2,362,004 2,822 177
Qther segments
Tolal sales revenue 2,362,804 2,822,177
RESULT
Segment rasult . (6,143,688) (304,7@
Flnance Cosis (68,840) (16,677)
Profit before Income (6,212,318} (320,450)
ASSETS
Segment assets 1,083,186 8,054,839
Total assets 1,068,166 8,054,839
LIABILITIES
Segment llablities 1,527,635 1,282,509
Tofal liabilitles 1,827,835 1,282,508
OTHER
Acquisitfons of non. 515,825 3,283,138
cument segment
assels
Depreclation and {78,365) {132,338)
amoriisalion of
segmeni assets
Secandary Reporting — Geographical Sagments Segment Revenues from  Carrying Amount of Segment  Acquisitions of Non-current
Extermal Customers Assets Segment Assels
2000 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$ § $ § $ $

Geagraphleal location;
Australia 2,326,730 2,551,779 1,200,621 6,186,520 59,053 3,448,564
New Zealand 36,173 70,308 (131,457)  (141,883) (704} -
United Kingdam - - 2 2 “ -
Cther Countries - - - - . -

2,362,904 2622177 1,068,166 5,054,639 58,349 3.133,53’[

Accounting Policles
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Segment revenues and expenses are thosa directly atiributable to the sepments and Include gy Jont revenua and expenses where a reasanabla basls of
allocation exists. Segment assets inclide all assets used by a segment and consist principally 6f cash, receivables, invéntaries, Intangibles and properly,
plant and equipment, net of allowances and aceumulated deprectation and amorlisation, While jnast such 4ssets can be directly aftributed to individual
segments, the canying amount of certaln assets used jointly by two or more segments Is allocdted to the segments on a reasonable basls, Sagment
liabifitfes consist princlpally of payables, employee benefils, accruad expenses, provisions and borrowings, Segment assets and Jiabiities do not Include
deferred income taxes.

Intersegment Transfers
Sagmenl revenues, expenses and resuils include transfars batween segments. The prices charged on intersegment transactions are the same as those
chaged for similar goods fo parties outslde of the consalldated group at an am's length, These transfors are aliminated on cansolidation,

Businass and Geographical Segments
Business segments
The consofidated group has the following business segments:
— Distribution civisien provides a range of services thratghnut Australla, New Zealand and United Kingdom.

Geographical segments
The consolidated group’s business segments are located In Australia, New Zealand and Unlted Kingdom.

Nots 22 Cash Flow Information

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2088 2008
{a) Reconclliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Profit

after Inecme Tax
Profif afterincome tax {6.212,318) {320,450) (6,218,878) 1,278,012
Non-cash flows in profit
Depreciation 78,385 132,338 78,365 132,338
Impaiment of goodwill 3,808,081 3,808,961
[mpairent of investmenls
Net {gain}floss on disposa! of property, plant and equipment 58,008 - 56,006 -
Changes In assets and liabilitles, net of the effects of
purchase and disposal of subsldiaties
(Increase)/decreass in irade and term recelvables 75400 (239,131} 393,374 (097,414)
(increase)/decrease in other assets 304,321 304,324
{Increasa)/decrease in knventories 1,077 890 (886,806) 1,051,138  (1,65B,578)
Increasef(decraasa) in trade payables and accruals 817,487 1,072,744 588,777 1,169,708
Increasei{decrease) in other payable {868,724) (1.069,739)
Increasel{decreass) In provisions 24,001 14,811 9,322 14,911
Cash flow from operations 1,186,603 226,484) (1,018,996 83,023

Nete 23 Shara-based Fayments

() On Dt December 2008, 1,750,000 share options were granted to directors to take up ordinary shares at an exercise price of 25cents each. The options
are exercisable on or before 31 July 2012. The options hold no voting or dividend righls and are not iranisferable.

() 1,700,000 Employees’ optiona are fo be ssued on expiry of four years from the date of publle listing (i.e. Sanuary 2011).
All options granled to key management personnel are ordinary shares In Soda Brands Limited which confers a right of ane share for every optlon held.

Conzolidated Group Parent Entity
Number Weighted Number Weightad
average average
exercige price exercise price

Qutstanding as at 31 July 2007 1,750,000 25¢c 1,750,000 25c
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Oufstanding as at 31 July 2008 1,750,000 25¢ 1,750,000 25¢c
Granted
Forfelted
Exercised
Explred
Outstanding as at 31 July 2009 4,750,000 25¢ 1,750,000 25¢
Options exercisable as at 31 July 2008: 1,750,600 25¢c 1,750,000 25¢

Options exercisable as at 37 July 2008: 1,750,000 25¢ 1,750,000 25¢
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Included under employes benefits sxpense in the income statement Is nll {20087 nil) and relates to equity seftled share based payment transaotions. As the
exercise'price on the date of issue and since the day of lssue of the options Wwas equal or less than the fair valua of shares. ' e s

Note 24 Events After tha Balance Sheet Date

The Company has exerclsed the call oplion over ihe entita jssued share capital of Incolabs Holdings Pty Ltd on 268 Octobar 2009, which becomes effective
on 31 October 2008. The acquisition will be funded via additional secured loans tolaling $2.7 million pravided equally by Sou) Private Equity Limited (SPEL)
and Maximi;e Equity Pty Ltd (MEQ),

On 28 Qctober 2009 the directors have resolved to cancal share opticns previously issued io the ex-directors,

Chrls Photakls passed away and ceased to be a director fram 14 Augus! 2009 and David John Fairfull was appointed a director on 01 Seplember 2009 and
represents SPEL, the majority shareholder of the group, ho other matiers or eircurnslances have arsen since the end of the financial year which significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated group, the resuits of those operations, or the state of affairs ¢f the consolidated group
in future flnancial years,

Note 25 Related Party Transactions

Consolicated Group Parent Entity
2009 2008 2008 2008
$ § 3 $
Transactons between related partles are on nomeal cammerdal terms and
condlicns ne mere favoureble than those avallable to other partles unless
otherwise stafed,
Transactions with related partles;
(a} Ultimate Parent Company
Cash loans from/ (to) ultimate parent entlty, Souls Private Equity Limited - (140,000) . (140,000}
(SPEL)
Paymentf (Recsipt} of interest on cash loans provided by SPEL 15,268 {33,238) 15,288 (33,238)
Other payables to SPEL (Payroll tax paid by SPEL) 95,444 - 95,441 -
{b) Other Related Parties
Cash [eans from/ {10) assoclated company, Maximise Equity Loan {MEL). - - - -
Payment/ (Recelpl) of interest on cash loans provided by MEL 14,607 - 15,297 -
Other payables to Incalabs Pty Ltd 77,736 - 77.736 -

(c) Wholly owned subsldiarles
Receivables fram/ (ta) subsidlary - So Distribution Pty Ltd - - - 178,591

Recsivables from/ {to) subsidiary - Soda Brands (NZ) Pty Lid - 711 184,713

(d) Identification of Related Partles Uitimate Parent Entlty
The parent enfily Is ultimately contralled by Souls Private Equity Limited,
which held £0.27% of the lssued share caplta) of the parent enity as at 31
July 2009 (2008; 68.2%). Souls Private Equity Limited is incorporated In
Australla.

As disclosed in Note 11(¢) the Gompany has entered info a put & call aption agreement far purchase of the entire share capital of [nnexa Group Pty Ltd
{Innxea) - a company incarporated in Australka with Christopher William MeGibbon - General Manager/ Company Sacretary.

Note 26 Finantial Risk Management
The graup's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable, Joans to and from subsidiades and leases,

The totals for each category of finangial instruments, measwred in accerdance with AASE 139 as detalled in the accounting policies to these financial

stataments, are as follows:-
Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
Financlal Assets 2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalents B 19,679 120,024 18,022 117,761
Loans and recelvables ‘ of 286,955 362,364 A7 1,074,046
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
— Equity investments 11b - 704 3,203,840

306,634 452,387 458,463 4,486,647

Financlal Liabilitles
Financlal liabilities at amortised cost :
— Trade ang other payables 16 883,072 1,268,508 872,689 1,262,675
— Bomowings 17 620,885 - 829,885 -
1,612,957 1,258,608 1,502,554 1,252 875

Financial Risk Management Policies
Specific Financlal Risk Exposures and Managemant
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The maln rigks the group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate rsk, foreign curfency risk, liquidity risk, credit dsk and commodily
and equity price risk. e ‘

a.

Interest rate risk

Expasure to interest rate risk arises on financlal assels and financial liabiities recognised at reperling dale wherehy & future change In Interest rates will
affect future cash flaws or the fair value of fixed rate financlal instrumenis. The cempany has borrowings from its ultimate holding company and refated
entities,

Interest rate risk s managed using a mix of fixed and foating rate debt. It is the polley of the group to keep between 5% and 10% of debt on fixed
interast rates,

b. Liquidity risk :
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty In settling its debts or otherwise meeting ls obligations related to
financisl llabllitles. ‘The Group manages this risk through the following mechanisma:-
= prepasing forward looking cash flow analysls in relation fo its cperational, [nvesting and financing activitles
= maintaining a reputable cred profite
*» managing credii risk refated to financial assets
* onhly investing surplus cash with major financial Institutions
* camparing the maturity profile of financial liabilitles with the raalisation profile of financial assets

¢. Forelgn exchange risk
Exposure 1o foreign exchange risk may result In the falr value or future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuating due to movement in forelgn
axchange rales of cumrenclas in which the Group holds financlal instruments which are other than the AUD functional currency of tha Group.

Due o Instruments hald by overseas operations, fuctuation In New Zealend doltar may impact on the Group's financlal resulls unless those exposures
are appropriately hedgad.

The following table shows the forelgn currency risk on the financial assels and liablliles of the Group’s cperations denominated in currancias other than
the functional currency of the operations. The foreign currancy risk in the baoks of the parent Is eonsidered immaterial and is therefore not shown,

2008 Net financia! assafs/{ilabilities) In AUD $

Consolidatad NZD AUD Total AUD

Functional currency of Group enfity

Austrafian Dollars (316611} {316.611)

New Zealand Dollars {141,858) {141,858)

Balance sheet exposure {141,858) {316.611) - - {458,489}

2008 Net financial assets/(liabllities) In AUD §& —_—

Conaoclidated NZD AUD Total AUD

Functional currency of Group entlty

Australlan Daollars 4,920,550 4,920,550

New Zealand Dollars {148.420) (148,420)

Balance sheet exposure , (148,420 4,920,550 - -~ 4772130

d, Craditrisk

Exposure ta credit risk refating ta financial assets arises from the potential nonh-performance by counterpanties of contract obligations that could lead to
afinancial loss to the Graup,

Credit risk Is managed through melntaining procedures ensuring, to the extent possible, that customers and counterparties to transactions are of saund
eredit worthiness and includes the wtillzation of systems for the approval, granting and renewal of eredit Kmils, the regular monfioring of eXposuras
against such Iimits and the moniforing of the financlal stabillty of significant customers and counterparties. Such menitoring Is used in assessing
recelvables for impairment.

Risk [s also minimised through investing surplus funds In financial institutions that malnialn & high credit rating or in entities that the FRMC has
otherwlse cleared as being financlally sound. Where the Group Is unable to ascertain a satisfactory credit risk profile In relation to a customer or
counterparty, then risk may be further managed through #itle retention clauses aver goods or obtakning security by way of personal or commercial
guarantees over assets of sufficient value which can be claimed against in the event of any default.

Credit Risk Exposures

The maximum exposure to credit tisk by class of recognised financial assels at balance date, excluding the value of any collateral ar olher security held
is equivalent to the carrying value and classification of those financia! ssseis {net of any pravisions) as presented in the balance sheet.

The Group has no slgnificant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterpariles, However, on & geographic basls, the
Group has significant cred)t risk exposures to Australia a given the substantial aperations in this region. Detalls with respect 1o credit risk of Trade and
Other Recelvables is provided In Note 8,

Trade and other recelvables that are neifter past due or Impatred are considered fo be of kigh credit quality, Aggregates of such amaunts are as
detailed at Note 9.

Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial Institutions is managed by the FRMC In accordance with approved Board poficy. Such
policy requires that surplus funds are only invested with counterparies with a Standard and Poar's rating of at least AA-. The following table pravides
Infermation regarding the credit risk refating to cash and money market sacurities based on S&F counterparty credit ratings.

Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
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. 2008 . 2008 2009 2008
: $ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalents e '
= AAA Rated 18,678 120,024 18,022 117,761
8 19,879 120,024 18,022 117,761

e. Pricarisk
The group Is expased to price Hek In respect of packaging and raw material for production of halr care products,

Net Fair Values
Fair value estimation

‘Tha falt values of financial assets and financial liabililles are presented In the following table and can be campared {o thelr carrying values as presented In
the balance sheet. Falr values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a llabllity setlled, between knowiedgeable, willing parties in an
arm'’s length transaction. .

Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated or subject to Judgement, whera changes In assumptions may have a material Impact on
1he amounts estimated, Aveas of judgement and the assumptions have been detailed below. Where possible, valuation Information used fo calculate fair
value is extracted from the market, with more reliable information avallable from markets that are actively raded. In this regand, fair values for listed
securities are obtained from quoted market bid prices. Where securities are unlisted and no market quales are avallable, falr value is obtained using
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

Differences betwaon falr valies and camying values of fnancial instruments with fixed interest rates are dus io the change In discount rates being applied by
the market since thelr initlal recogrition by the Group. Most of these instrumenls which are canied at amoriised cosl (Le. temmn recelvables, held-to-maturity
assels, loan Babifities) are to be held until maturity and therefore the net falr value figures calculated bear litte relevance to the Group.

Footnote 2009 2008
Consolidated Group Met Carrylng  Net Falr Value Met Carrying Net Fair Value
’ Valus $ Value $
$ $
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents {i} 19,679 19,679 120,024 120,024
Trade and other recelvables i 286,855 286,255 362,304 352,384
Total financial assets 306,634 306,834 482 387 482,387
Financial Nabflitles '
Trade and othar payables (i) 883,072 883,072 1,258,508 1,258,508
Total financial liabilltias 803,072 883072 1,258,508 1,258,508
Facinote 2008 2008
Parent Entity Net Camying Net Fair Value Net Carrying Net Falr Value
Valus $ Value $
§ 5
Flnanciat agssts
Cash and cash equivalents ()] 18,022 18,022 117,761 117,761
Trade and other receivables m 430,737 439,737 1,074,048 1,074,048
Invastments - avallable for sale {in) 704 704 3,293,840 3,293,840
Total filnanclal assets 458,463 455,463 4,485,647 4,485,647
Financial fiablilties
Trade and cther payables @ 872,669 B72,869  1.252.675 1,262,675
Total financial liskilities 872,668 872,860 _ 1,282,875 1,252,675

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been detenmined based on the following methadclogles:

() Cashand cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade end other payables are short term instrirnents in nature whose canying value [s
equivalent to falr value. Trade and other payables excludes amounts provided for rslating to annual leave which Is not considered a financial
Instrument,

(i) The directors have detarmined that the falr valuss of unlisted availabls-for-sale financlal assets cannot ba reliably measured as variability in the
range of reasonable fair value esUmales is significant. Consequently, such assets are recognised at cost and thelr falr valuss have also been
stated al cost in the table above. There is o dctive market for these investments, and there Is no present intention to dispose of such Investments,

Note 27 Company Detslls

The reglslered office of the company Is:
Soda Brands Limited

Bullding 1, Suite 3

106 Old Pittwater Road

Brockvals NSW 2100

The principal places of business are:
Soda Brands Limited

Building 1, Suite 3

108 Old Pittwater Road

Brockvale NSW 2100
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AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The directors of the company declare that:

1. the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 10 to 21, are In accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001 and:
(a) comply with Accounting Standards; and
(b} give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 July 2009 and of the performance for the
year ended on that date of the company and consolidated group;

2. the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance Officer have each declared that:
{a) the financial records of the company for the financial year have been properly maintained in
accordance with section 286 of the Corporations Act 2001;
(b) the financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with the Accounting Standards; and
(c) thefinanclal statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view;

3.  inthe directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable,

The company and a wholly-owned subsidiary, [Insert company name], have entered into a deed of cross
guarantee under which the company and its subsidiary guarantee the debis of each other.

At the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the companles which are party fo
this deed of cross guarantee will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become
subject to, by virtue of the deed.

This declaration Is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

frd=
Director 1 -

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec Chairman)

Dated this 30th day of October 2009
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SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLEED ENTITIES
" INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SODA BRANDS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financla! report of Soda Brands Limited (the company) and Soda Brands Limitad
and controlled entities (the consclidated entity), which comprises the balance sheet as at 31 July 2008, and the Income
statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of
signfficant accounting policies and other explanatory nofes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated antity
comprising the cempany and the entiiies i controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financlal year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financiaf Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the {financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounfing Standards (including the Australian Acsounting Intarpretations) and the
Comporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining infernal control relevant fo the
preparation and fair presentation of the financlal report that is free from material misstatement, whefher due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policles; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable In
the circumstances. in Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation
of Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivalents to Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with IFRS.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit In
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements refating to sudit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtsin reasonable assurance whether the
financlal report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the audltor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or emor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
conslders internal control refevant to the entity’s preparstion and fair presentation of the financial report in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the enlity's internal confrol. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financlal report.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have cbtained Is sufficient and apprepriate {o provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independernce

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, We
confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, provided to the directors of Soda
Brands Limited on [insert date], would be in the same terms if provided to the directors as at the date of this auditor's
report.

Auditor's Opinlon

[n our opinion:

a. the financial report of Soda Brands Litnited and Controlled Entities is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

1. giving a frue and falr view of the company and consolidated entity's financial position as at 31 July 2009 and of thelr
performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Regulations 2001;

b. the financial report also complies with International Financlat Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

Significant uncertainty regarding continuation as a Going Concern

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Nofe 1 in the financlal statements that indicates that the
consolidated entity is seeking to raise additional funding by way of borrawing and lssue of shares or from other extemal
sources. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicates that there Is significant uncertainty
abaut the consolidated entity's ahility to continus as a going concem and, therefora, whether it will reallse its assets and
extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report.

Report on the Remuneration Repori




We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 31 July 2009. The
directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remunération ‘Report In
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express' an oginionon the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australizn Auditing Standards. :

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Soda Brands Limited for the year ended 31 July 2009, complies with sectian
300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Narme of Firm:  Rothsay Ghartersd Accountants L

Name of Partner: Eg@nk grathas L =

Address: Level 18, 6-10 O'Connell Street
Sydney, NSW 2000

Dated this 30th day of October 2009
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SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 148 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ADDITIONAL INFORMATICN FOR LISTED PUBLIC COMPANIES

The following additional information Is required by the Australian Stock Exchange Ltd in respect of listed public companies cnly,
1. Shareholding

a. Distribution of Shareholders Number

Category (size of halding) Ordinary Radeemable

1-1,000 - -

1,001 — 5,000 2 -

6,001 ~ 10,000 142 -

10,001 — 100,000 107 N

100,001 —and over 15 -
266 -

b.  The number of shareholdinga held in less than marketabls parcals is nil.

¢. The names of the substantial shareholders listed In the holding eompany's raglster as at 31 July 2009 are:

Number
Shareholder Grdinary Preference
Soul Private Equity Limited 23,200,733 -
Kistanl Holdings Pty Lid 11,368,060 -
Avenue Invastments Pty Lid 1,275,000 -
Mydate Ply Ltd 1,200,000 -
Hair Fx Ausiralia Pty Lid 723,405 -

d. Voting Rights
The voting rights attached to each class of equity security are as follows:
Ordinary shares
— Each ordinary share is entifled fo one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each member present at a mesting or by proxy
has one vote on a show of hands.
Redeemable and canverting preference shares
~ These sharas have no voting rights.

6. 20 Largest Shareholders — Ordinary Shares

Number of Ordinary % Helc
Fully Pald Shares of lI9sued

Name Held Ordinary Capital
1. Soul Private Equlty Limited 23,200,733 50.27%
2. Kistani Holdings Pty L.td 11,369,060 24.63%
3. Avenue Investrents Ply Lid 1,275,000 2.76%
4.  Mydate Piy Ltd 1,200,000 2.60%
6.  Hair Fx Australta Pty Ltd 723,405 1.57%
6. HerWayPly Ltid 548,106 1.19%
7. Frank Boffa Pty Lid 548 106 1.18%
8. Cordony Salons Ply Ltd 548,106 1.19%
9. Cardony & Go. Py Ltd 548,106 1.19%
10, Chrls Boffa Pty Lid 548,106 1.19%
11, Mrs Marry Ghatta & Nicholas Ghatta 466,667 1.01%
12. Tidereef Pty Ltd 261,000 0.67%
13, Scarf Family Superannuation 231,470 0.60%
14. Temant Pty Lid 150,000 0.32%
15. Rastana Holdings Pty Lid 150,000 0.32%
16, Ronzld Bemard Gaffriay 100,000 0.22%
17. D J Fairfull Pty Ltd 100,000 22%
18, Camjon Ply Lt 100,000 0.22%
19, Busker's End Pty Ltd 100,000 0.22%
20, Murang Pty Ltd 80,000 0.17%
42247 865 91.53%

f. 20 Largest Shareholders — Redesmabla Preferance Shares
Nurnher of % Hele
Redeemable of Issued
Preferenca Fully Redeemahle

Paid Shares Hald _ Praferance Shares
Nil NIl




SODA BRANDS LIMITED ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES o

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR LISTED PUBLIC GOMPANIES

No retdemable preference shares issued
The name of the company secretary is MCGIBBON, Christopher William.

The address of the principal reglstered office In Australia is Soda Brands Limited, Budlding 1, Suife 3, 106 Old Plttwater Road,
Braokvala NSW 2100, Telephane 02 882359200,

Registers of securifies are held at the following addresses
NSW Soda Brands Limite, Building 1, Suite 3, 106 Old Pltiwater Road, Brookvale NSW 2100

Stock Exchanga Listing
Quotation has been granted for alf the oreinary shares of the company on all Member Exchanges of the National Stock
Exchange Limited,

Unquoted Sacurities

Options aver Unissued Shares
A total of 14,831,673 options are on Issue.

36




